
VIRGINIA BOARD 

FOR 

WATERWORKS AND WASTEWATER WORKS OPERATORS 

AND ONSITE SEWAGE SYSTEM PROFESSIONALS 

 
Tentative AGENDA THURSDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2020 

10:00 A.M. RIDGEFIELD BALLROOM 

 
DEEP RUN RECREATION CENTER 

DEEP RUN PARK 

9900 RIDGEFIELD PARKWAY 

HENRICO, VA  23233 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURES  

 

III. COVID-19 SAFETY REMINDERS 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
a. Board Agenda, October 22, 2020 

 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

b.    Board Meeting Minutes, July 23, 2020 
 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD – Five-minute public comment, per person, on those 

items not included on the agenda with the exception of any open disciplinary files. 

 

VII. REGULATORY ACTION UPDATE 

 
VIII. CASE FILES** 

 a. File Number 2020-02122, John A. Clements, Sr. 

     Licensing—IFF by Eldridge 

             b. File Number 2020-02311, Daniel Lee Gray 

     Licensing—IFF by Eldridge 

    

IX. OTHER BUSINESS 

  a. WWWO 2020 CPE Audit Report 

  b.   PSI/AMP Examination Updates 

  i. Examination Statistics Report    

  c.   DPOR Updates as it Relates to COVID-19 Response 

             d.   Board Financial Statements 

             e.   Update on Outreach Opportunities 

             f.    Election of Officers 

             g.   Other Business 

  

X. FUTURE MEETING DATES 
a.   December 3, 2020 

 
XI. COMPLETE CONFLICT OF INTEREST FORMS AND TRAVEL VOUCHERS    

XII. ADJOURN 

Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpretative services 



should contact the Department at (804) 367-0362 at least ten days prior to the meeting so that suitable 

arrangements can be made for an appropriate accommodation. The Department fully complies with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 

** Agenda materials made available to the public do not include disciplinary case files or application files pursuant 

to §54.1-108 of the Code of Virginia. 

 



EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURES 



COVID-19 SAFETY REMINDERS 



 

VIRGINIA BOARD FOR 

WATERWORKS AND WASTEWATER WORKS OPERATORS AND ONSITE 

SEWAGE SYSTEM PROFESSIONALS 

 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

 

The Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage 

System Professionals met on July 23, 2020, at the offices of the Department of Professional and 

Occupational Regulation (DPOR), Perimeter Center, 9960 Mayland Drive, 2nd Floor, Board 

Room 2, Richmond, Virginia 23233. 

 

The following members of the Board were present: 

         

James N. Brockwell 

Erica Duncan 

W. Jordan Evans 

John Ewing 

Thomas Wayne Fore, Vice-Chair 

Pamela M. Pruett, Chair 

Dwayne Roadcap 

D. Wayne Staples 

Caleb Taylor 

 

Board members Rosa-Lee Cooke and Don Riggleman were not present at the meeting. 

 

DPOR staff present for all or part of the meeting included: 

 

Mary Broz-Vaughan, Director 

Trisha L. Henshaw, Executive Director 

Shannon Webster, Director of Examinations 

Tanya M. Pettus, Administrative Assistant 

 

Joshua Laws from the Office of the Attorney General was present at the meeting. 

 

Ms. Pruett, Chair, finding a quorum of the Board present, called the 

meeting to order at 9:32 a.m.   
Call to Order 

  

Ms. Henshaw advised the Board of emergency evacuation 

procedures. 
Emergency 

Evacuation 

Procedures 

  

Ms. Henshaw advised the Board of safety measures currently in place 

due to COVID-19. 

 

Ms. Henshaw introduced staff member Brenda Hundley, who was 

present to assist in implementing safety protocols. 

COVID-19 Safety 

Reminders 

  

John Ewing arrived at 9:33 a.m. Arrival of Board 

Member 
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Mr. Fore moved to approve the agenda as presented. Mr. Staples 

seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:  

Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, 

and Taylor. 

Approval of 

Agenda 

  

Mr. Fore moved to approve the minutes of the January 9, 2020, 

Education and Training Committee meeting as presented.  Mr. 

Staples seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:  

Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, 

and Taylor. 

 

Mr. Fore moved to approve the minutes of the January 9, 2020, Board 

meeting as presented.  Mr. Taylor seconded the motion which was 

unanimously approved by:  Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, 

Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor. 

Approval of 

Minutes 

  

  

The Board members reviewed a comment submitted in writing by 

Dennis R. Wanless regarding education opportunities for licensees 

in light of the current public health emergency.  Mr. Wanless 

explained the changes he has made to his course offerings and asked 

that the Board consider allowing correspondence courses for 

continuing professional education (CPE) credit.    

 

The Board agreed by consensus that correspondence courses that 

cover topics found in the regulations qualify for CPE credits. 

Public Comment 

Period 

  

Mr. Ewing, Ms. Pruett, and Mr. Roadcap recused themselves for 

discussion and deliberations on File Number 2019-0277.  Mr. Fore, 

Vice-Chair, assumed Chair of the Board. 

Recusal of Board 

Members 

  

In the matter of File Number 2019-0277, Larry Woodford 

Madison, Jr., the Board members reviewed the record which 

consisted of the of the Report of Findings, transcript and exhibits 

from the Informal Fact-Finding Conference (IFF), and the Presiding 

Officer’s Summary and Recommendation. 

 

The Board reviewed a written comment from Dr. Marcia Degen of 

the Virginia Department of Health (VDH), who participated in the 

IFF.  Dr. Degen explained the VDH interpretation of §54.1-

402A.11 (ii) b of the Code of Virginia, and briefly explained the 

differences in design between pump systems and gravity systems.  

Dr. Degen expressed concern that the Presiding Officer’s 

interpretation of the Code applied pump standards to a gravity 

system. 

 

Mr. Madison was present to address the Board.  Mr. Madison advised 

the Board of communications he had with members of VDH staff 

File Number 2019-

0277, Larry 

Woodford Madison, 

Jr. 
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regarding the design in question.  Mr. Madison explained his design 

and use of pads in onsite sewage systems, and advised the Board of 

design options suggested to him by VDH staff.  Mr. Madison 

expressed concern that there is no clear guidance from VDH 

concerning certain designs and the potential for unauthorized 

practice of engineering, and stated that he is currently working with 

an engineer to avoid confusion.    

 

After lengthy discussion, Mr. Brockwell moved to accept the 

Presiding Officer’s recommendation, and find Mr. Madison in 

violation of Board Regulation 18 VAC 160-40-470.  Mr. Fore 

seconded the motion which was approved by:  Brockwell and Fore.  

The following members voted in opposition to the motion: Evans, 

Staples, and Taylor.  Ms. Duncan abstained with the explanation 

that her knowledge of the underlying regulations pertaining to this 

matter is limited.  The motion failed.  Mr. Evans then moved to 

accept the summary of the presiding officer, and reject the 

recommendation and adopt a finding of no violation.   Mr. Staples 

seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:  

Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Fore, Staples, and Taylor. 

  

Mr. Ewing, Ms. Pruett, and Mr. Roadcap returned to the meeting.  

Ms. Pruett resumed Chair of the Board.  
Return of Board 

Members 

  

Mr. Fore recused himself from the meeting for discussion and 

deliberations on File Numbers 2019-02165, 2019-02159, and 2020-

00169. 

Recusal of Board 

Member 

  

In the matter of File Number 2019-02165, Alice Marie Davis, the 

Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the Notice 

of Prima Facie Case, Report of Findings, evidence, and the Presiding 

Officer’s Summary and Recommendation.  Mr. Evans moved to 

accept the recommendation of the Presiding Officer and find Alice 

Marie Davis in violation of Board regulation 18VAC 160-30-320.1.  

Mr. Taylor seconded the motion which was unanimously approved 

by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and 

Taylor. Mr. Staples then moved to accept the recommendation as to 

the sanction and revoke Alice Marie Davis’ Class 2 Wastewater 

Works Operator license.  Mr. Evans seconded the motion which was 

unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, 

Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor. 

File Number 2019-

02165, Alice Marie 

Davis 

  

In the matter of File Number 2019-02159, Randolph Paul Peters, 

Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the Notice 

of Prima Facie Case, Report of Findings, evidence, and the Presiding 

Officer’s Summary and Recommendation.  Mr. Brockwell moved to 

accept the recommendation of the Presiding Officer and find 

File Number 2019-

02159, Randolph 

Paul Peters 



Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals 

July 23, 2020 

Page 4 

 

Randolph Paul Peters in violation of Board regulation 18VAC 160-

30-320.3.  Mr. Staples seconded the motion which was unanimously 

approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Pruett, Roadcap, 

Staples, and Taylor. Mr. Staples then moved to accept the 

recommendation as to the sanction and impose a monetary penalty 

of $500.00, and revoke Randolph Paul Peters’ Class 2 Wastewater 

Works Operator license.  Mr. Evans seconded the motion which was 

unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, 

Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor. 

  

In the matter of File Number 2020-00169, Randolph Paul Peters, 

Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the Notice 

of Prima Facie Case, Report of Findings, evidence, and the Presiding 

Officer’s Summary and Recommendation.  Mr. Evans moved to 

accept the recommendation of the Presiding Officer and find 

Randolph Paul Peters in violation of Board regulation 18VAC 160-

30-320.3.  Mr. Brockwell seconded the motion which was 

unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, 

Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor. Mr. Staples then moved to 

accept the recommendation as to the sanction and impose a monetary 

penalty of $500.00, and revoke Randolph Paul Peters’ Class 4 

Waterworks Operator license.  Mr. Evans seconded the motion which 

was unanimously approved by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, 

Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor. 

File Number 2020-

00169, Randolph 

Paul Peters 

  

Mr. Fore returned to the meeting. Return of Board 

Member 

  

In the matter of File Number 2020-01819, Steven Matthew 

Marshall, the Board members reviewed the record which consisted 

of the application file, transcript, and exhibits from the Informal 

Fact-Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer’s Summary and 

Recommendation. Mr. Fore moved to accept the recommendation of 

the Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Marshall’s application for a 

Master Conventional Onsite Sewage System Operator license.  Mr. 

Staples seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:  

Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, 

and Taylor. 

File Number 2020-

01819, Steven 

Matthew Marshall 

  

In the matter of File Number 2020-01946, Jeffrey Dallas Spickard, 

the Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the 

application file, transcript, and exhibits from the Informal Fact-

Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer’s Summary and 

Recommendation. Mr. Fore moved to accept the recommendation of 

the Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Spickard’s application for a 

Class 2 Wastewater Works Operator license.  Mr. Evans seconded 

File Number 2020-

01946, Jeffrey 

Dallas Spickard 
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the motion which was unanimously approved by:  Brockwell, 

Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor. 

  

In the matter of File Number 2020-01186, Darrell Wesley Kinard, 

the Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the 

application file, transcript, and exhibits from the Informal Fact-

Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer’s Summary and 

Recommendation. Ms. Duncan moved to accept the recommendation 

of the Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Kinard’s application for a 

Class 4 Wastewater Works Operator license.  Mr. Fore seconded the 

motion which was unanimously approved by:  Brockwell, Duncan, 

Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor. 

File Number 2020-

01186, Darrell 

Wesley Kinard 

  

In the matter of File Number 2020-01296, Devin Charles Howell, 

the Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the 

application file, transcript, and exhibits from the Informal Fact-

Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer’s Summary and 

Recommendation.  Mr. Evans moved to accept the recommendation 

of the Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Howell’s application for a 

Class 4 Wastewater Works Operator license contingent upon 

completion of the DOC Wastewater Works Operator Class 4 

Apprenticeship Program, meeting all entry requirements contained 

in the Board’s regulations, and passing the applicable examination. 

Mr. Fore seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:  

Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, 

and Taylor. 

File Number 2020-

01296, Devin 

Charles Howell 

  

In the matter of File Number 2020-01507, Derrick Lamont Bright, 

the Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the 

application file, transcript, and exhibits from the Informal Fact-

Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer’s Summary and 

Recommendation. Ms. Duncan moved to accept the recommendation 

of the Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Bright’s application for a 

Class 2 Wastewater Works Operator license.  Mr. Evans seconded 

the motion which was unanimously approved by:  Brockwell, 

Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor. 

File Number 2020-

01507, Derrick 

Lamont Bright 

  

In the matter of File Number 2020-02088, Gordon Lee James, II, 

the Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the 

application file, transcript, and exhibits from the Informal Fact-

Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer’s Summary and 

Recommendation. Mr. Fore moved to accept the recommendation of 

the Presiding Officer and approve Mr. James’ application for a Class 

4 Wastewater Works Operator license contingent upon completion 

of the DOC Wastewater Works Operator Class 4 Apprenticeship 

Program, meeting all entry requirements contained in the Board’s 

regulations, and passing the applicable examination. Mr. Staples 

File Number 2020-

02088, Gordon Lee 

James, II 



Virginia Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators and Onsite Sewage System Professionals 

July 23, 2020 

Page 6 

 

seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:  

Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, 

and Taylor. 

  

In the matter of File Number 2020-02153, Cecil Mandell Dixon, 

the Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the 

application file, transcript, and exhibits from the Informal Fact-

Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer’s Summary and 

Recommendation.  

 

Ms. Henshaw advised the Board that should it accept the 

Recommendation, the Presiding Officer’s Summary and 

Recommendation would need to be amended to reflect Mr. Dixon’s 

application for a Wastewater Works Operator’s license. 

 

Mr. Fore moved to accept the recommendation as amended of the 

Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Dixon’s application for a Class 4 

Wastewater Works Operator license contingent upon completion of 

the DOC Wastewater Works Operator Class 4 Apprenticeship 

Program, meeting all entry requirements contained in the Board’s 

regulations, and passing the applicable examination. Mr. Staples 

seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:  

Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, 

and Taylor. 

File Number 2020-

02153, Cecil 

Mandell Dixon 

  

In the matter of File Number 2020-02214, Rocky Jon Taylor, the 

Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the 

application file, transcript, and exhibits from the Informal Fact-

Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer’s Summary and 

Recommendation.  

 

Mr. Taylor was present to address the Board and thanked the Board 

for their time.  Mr. Taylor stated he was there to answer any questions 

the Board may have of him.  

 

Ms. Henshaw advised the Board that should it accept the 

Recommendation, the Presiding Officer’s Summary and 

Recommendation would need to be amended to reflect Mr. Taylor’s 

application for a Wastewater Works Operator’s license. 

 

Mr. Fore moved to accept the recommendation as amended of the 

Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Taylor’s application for a Class 3 

Wastewater Works Operator license.  Ms. Duncan seconded the 

motion which was unanimously approved by:  Brockwell, Duncan, 

Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor. 

File Number 2020-

02214, Rocky Jon 

Taylor 
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In the matter of File Number 2020-02270, Craig Morgan Callan, 

the Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the 

application file, transcript, and exhibits from the Informal Fact-

Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer’s Summary and 

Recommendation.  

 

Ms. Henshaw advised the Board that should it accept the 

Recommendation, the Presiding Officer’s Summary and 

Recommendation would need to be amended to reflect Mr. Callan’s 

application for a Wastewater Works Operator’s license. 

 

Mr. Fore moved to accept the recommendation as amended of the 

Presiding Officer and approve Mr. Callan’s application for a Class 4 

Wastewater Works Operator license.  Mr. Evans seconded the 

motion which was unanimously approved by:  Brockwell, Duncan, 

Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, and Taylor. 

File Number 2020-

02270, Craig 

Morgan Callan 

  

Ms. Pettus provided an update on the 2020 wastewater works 

operator CPE audit. The audit began on June 16, 2020, based on a 

random selection of 5% of current licensees. 

WWWO 2020 CPE 

Audit Report 

  

Ms. Henshaw provided the Board with waterworks and wastewater 

works examination statistics from January 1, 2017 through July 3, 

2020, as well as a comparison of exam scores from before and after 

an additional hour was allotted to the time limit in September 2019.  

Ms. Henshaw also provided a comparison of scores between first 

time and repeat exam takers. 

 

Ms. Henshaw also provided onsite examination statistics from 

January 1, 2017 to July 3, 2020 for informational purposes. 

 

Ms. Henshaw provided the Board with statistics from post-exam 

surveys that were added to waterworks and wastewater works 

exams.  Ms. Webster advised the Board that she is working with 

PSI to get the survey data reported in a more cohesive and 

automated way. 

 

Ms. Henshaw advised that a subject matter expert (SME) review of 

the onsite examination revisions to the 2017 ABC exam that was 

tentatively scheduled for April 2020 was cancelled due to COVID-

19.  Staff is hoping to reschedule the SME review in the fall.  

Examination 

Statistics Report 

  

Ms. Henshaw advised the Board of temporary waivers of certain 

regulations pursuant to Executive Order 51 in response to COVID-

19.  During the current state of emergency, the validity of licenses, 

certifications, registrations, and other authorizations issued by the 

Board that would otherwise (i) expire during the state of emergency 

DPOR Updates as it 

Relates to COVID-

19 Response 
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and (ii) be eligible for renewal or reinstatement during the state of 

emergency under applicable regulations, will be extended until the 

30th day after the date by which the state of emergency is lifted.  In 

addition, regulations that prohibit or limit online, electronic, or 

distance learning have also been waived until the 30th day after the 

date by which the state of emergency is lifted.  Ms. Henshaw noted 

that the waivers do not apply to statutory requirements. 

 

Ms. Henshaw advised the Board that in order to comply with public 

health emergency recommendations, the agency remains closed to 

the public and staff scheduling adjustments have been made, 

including telework for those employees who are eligible.   

 

Ms. Webster advised the Board that though PSI testing sites have 

re-opened, they are currently operating at 50% capacity.  Ms. 

Webster stated that staff has received complaints regarding the 

ability to contact PSI for exam scheduling.  Ms. Webster advised 

that PSI is working to alleviate availability and staffing issues 

within its call center.   

  

Board regulations 18VAC160-30-190.D and 18VAC160-40-330.D 

currently allow for a course instructor to get real-time CPE hours 

for the amount of time spent teaching each CPE course, as well as 

two CPE hours for the initial development or substantial updating 

of a CPE course.  This two hours may apply to each CPE course an 

instructor develops/updates within a license cycle.  As a result of 

the current emergency Mr. Staples asked the Board to consider 

increasing the number of CPE hours earned for the initial 

development or substantial updating of a course to three, in order to 

allow instructors to receive CPE credit for converting their current 

training programs to virtual or distance delivery.  After discussion, 

Mr. Staples moved to request that the Director, pursuant to the 

authority granted in Executive Order 51, as amended, request a 

temporary waiver of Board Regulation 18VAC160-30-190.D and 

18VAC160-40-330.D, as allowed by Executive Order 51, and allow 

certain licensees to receive up to three hours of continuing 

professional education (CPE), given the significant time investment by 

instructors to convert traditional classroom courses to virtual or 

distance delivery in response to the COVID-19 outbreak..  Ms. 

Duncan seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:  

Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, Staples, 

and Taylor. 

Discussion of 

18VAC160-30-190.D 

as it Relates to 

Converting 

Traditional 

Classroom Training 

to Online/Virtual 

Training Due to 

COVID-19 

  

Ms. Henshaw advised the Board that the Board for Contractors has 

begun a regulatory action to convert the current Sewage Disposal 

System (SDS) specialty into two categories, SDS-Alternative (SSA) 

and SDS-Conventional (SSC), in order to align the license of the 

Discussion of Board 

for Contractors 

Regulatory Action 
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Qualified Individual to the type of license held from the 

WWWOOSSP Board.  Ms. Henshaw advised that this will be done 

via the standard regulatory review process, which will include public 

comment periods to receive comments on the proposed amendment.   

for SDS License 

Specialty 

  

Ms. Henshaw presented the Board with tentative Board meeting 

dates for 2021, and advised that due to social distancing guidelines 

and limited availability of adequate space at Perimeter Center, some 

future Board meetings may be held at offsite locations.  Mr. Fore 

moved to accept the following meeting dates: 

 January 14, 2021 

 April 29, 2021 

 July 8, 2021 

 October 28, 2021 

 

Mr. Staples seconded the motion which was unanimously approved 

by: Brockwell, Duncan, Evans, Ewing, Fore, Pruett, Roadcap, 

Staples, and Taylor. 

Consider Future 

Meeting Dates 

  

Ms. Henshaw provided the Board with the most recent financial 

statements for review. 
Board Financial 

Statements 

  

Ms. Henshaw updated the Board on recent and upcoming outreach 

opportunities. 
Update on Outreach 

Opportunities 

  

Mr. Ewing inquired as to the responsibility of the Board and DPOR 

to review the past work of licensees who have been found in violation 

of the Board’s regulations.  Ms. Broz-Vaughan advised the Board 

that its jurisdiction only extends to the specific matters before it, and 

does not extend to other matters which have not come before the 

Board by way of finding of a specific violation by investigation into 

a complaint.  

 

Discussion was held on minimum competencies and the shared 

responsibilities of separate agencies who regulate the same 

occupations.  

Other Business 

  

Ms. Pruett reminded the Board that the next scheduled meeting date 

is October 22, 2020. 
Future Meeting 

Dates 

  

Ms. Pruett reminded the Board members to complete and return 

their conflict of interest forms and travel vouchers. 

 

Complete Conflict 

of Interest Forms 

and Travel 

Vouchers 

  

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 

11:27 a.m. 
Adjourn 
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     __________________________________________ 

     Pamela M. Pruett, Chair 

 

 

     __________________________________________ 

     Mary Broz-Vaughan, Secretary 



PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 

 

Five minute public comment, per person, with the 

exception of any open disciplinary or application files. 



Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works 

Operators and Onsite Sewage Systems 

Professionals 

 

Update on Regulatory Actions 
(as of October 7, 2020) 

 

 

 
Action: Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators Licensing 

Regulations – Periodic Review 

 Periodic Review Notice filed on 10/6/20. 

 Notice will be published in Register on 10/26/20. 

 Public comment period will be held from 10/26/20 to 11/16/20. 

 Results of public comment to be presented to Board at 1/14/21 meeting. 

 

Action: Onsite Sewage System Professionals Licensing Regulations – 

Periodic Review 

 Periodic Review Notice filed on 10/6/20. 

 Notice will be published in Register on 10/26/20. 

 Public comment period will be held from 10/26/20 to 11/16/20. 

 Results of public comment to be presented to Board at 1/14/21 meeting. 

 

 



Memo 
To: WWWOOSSP Board Members 

From: Tanya M. Pettus, Administrative Assistant 

Date: 10/22/2020 

Re: 2020 Wastewater Works Operators CPE Audit Report 

This memo provides information regarding the 2020 Wastewater Works Operators CPE 
Audit Report. 

June 16, 2020:  The regulant population of wastewater works operators eligible 
for audit totaled 1110 in Eagles. As previously directed by the Board, five 
percent (5%) of the eligible regulant population was randomly selected, 
resulting in 55 regulants selected for audit. Note: Regulants licensed less 
than two years were manually excluded. 

June 16 and 17, 2020: Initial letter and CPE audit form mailed to regulants selected 
for audit. 

July 17, 2020: Due date of CPE audit form and required documentation. 

July 21, 2020: Final notices mailed via UPS to 11 licensees who did not respond to 
the audit. 

August 4, 2020: Final due date of CPE audit form and required documentation. 

Update: Responses received as of close of business August 19, 2020: 

Total Received 52 
Passed 52 
Incomplete 0 
Pending Review 0 
Referred for Disciplinary Action 3 
Surrendered 0 
No Response 3 

2020 Wastewater Works Operators 

CPE Audit Report 



 
 

PSI/AMP EXAMINATION UPDATES 



EXAMINATION STATISTICS 

REPORT 



DPOR UPDATES AS IT RELATES TO 

COVID-19 RESPONSE 



2020-2022 Biennium August 2020

August 2020 July 2018 - July 2020 -

Activity August 2018 August 2020

Cash/Revenue Balance Brought Forward 15,919

Revenues 9,915 16,085 21,001

Cumulative Revenues 36,920

Cost Categories:

Board Expenditures 903 2,644 2,153

Board Administration 6,856 18,252 17,077

Administration of Exams 1,204 4,521 2,999

Enforcement 432 1,031 1,064

Legal Services 223 265 223

Information Systems 7,854 12,460 10,782

Facilities and Support Services 3,726 4,297 7,591

Agency Administration 2,978 8,367 7,354

Other / Transfers 0 0 0

Total Expenses 24,175 51,838 49,245

Transfer To/(From) Cash Reserves 0 0 (13,984)

Ending Cash/Revenue Balance 1,659

Cash Reserve Beginning Balance 161,245 0 175,229

Change in Cash Reserve 0 0 (13,984)

Cash Reserve Ending Balance 161,245 0 161,245

Number of Regulants

Current Month 5,829

Previous Biennium-to-Date 5,782

Biennium-to-Date Comparison

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation

Statement of Financial Activity

Board for WWWOOSSP
954530



UPDATE ON OUTREACH 

OPPORTUNITIES 



ELECTION OF OFFICERS 



OTHER BUSINESS 



COMPLETE CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

FORMS AND  

TRAVEL VOUCHERS 



ADJOURN 

 

Please return your document folders to Tanya Pettus. 
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 01                           NOTE:  All participants are present

 02  via teleconference.

 03                           The hearing commences at 1:00 p.m.,

 04  as follows:

 05                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Good afternoon.  My

 06  name is Jessica Eldridge and I'm a designee of the Board.

 07  This is an informal fact-finding conference to hear additional

 08  information regarding the regulatory issues involved with your

 09  application for licensure.

 10                           On the IFF conference call today is

 11  Joseph Ciszek who's assisting.  We also have a court reporter

 12  present.  The court reporter will make a transcript of

 13  everything that is said and that transcript will become an

 14  official part of your file.

 15                           I now convene the conference to accept

 16  presentation from those individuals who are present.

 17                           Mr. Gray, if you could please state

 18  your full name and mailing address for the record.

 19                           MR. GRAY:  Daniel Lee Gray.  110

 20  Delaware Avenue, Hamilton, Virginia 20158.

 21                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.

 22                           Mr. Ciszek, if you could please

 23  introduce the exhibits at this time.

 24                           MR. CISZEK:  Certainly.  Board

 25  Exhibit Number 1, informal fact-finding conference referral
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 01  memorandum.  Board Exhibit Number 2, notice of informal

 02  fact-finding conference by telephone.  Board Exhibit Number

 03  3, correspondence regarding applicant's failure to appear for

 04  informal fact-finding conference.  Board Exhibit Number 4,

 05  amended notice of informal fact-finding conference by telephone.

 06                           That is all.

 07                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.

 08                           Sir, the reason you're appearing

 09  for an informal fact-finding conference today is you disclosed

 10  prior criminal convictions on your application for licensure.

 11  The Board has asked us to convene this conference to get the

 12  facts and circumstances surrounding those convictions.  In

 13  addition, we're going to talk a little bit about your work

 14  history and your plans moving forward if granted licensure.

 15                           The convictions that we're here to

 16  speak about today are both dated October 20th of 2011.  In

 17  the Circuit Court for Brevard County, Florida, you were

 18  convicted of possession of a firearm or ammunition by a

 19  delinquent, a felony; and improper exhibition of a dangerous

 20  weapon or firearm, a misdemeanor.

 21                           Regarding these convictions, it looks

 22  like you were sentenced to serve one day and then were credited

 23  with time served and then placed on probation for a period

 24  of two years.  Is that correct?

 25                           MR. GRAY:  Yes, ma'am.
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 01                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  What specifically

 02  happened that led to these convictions, sir?

 03                           MR. GRAY:  So, first and foremost,

 04  I feel like there needs to be a little bit of a backstory of

 05  what happened.  So, when I was 16, my father died and I was

 06  living on my own since I was 16.  Then I started doing

 07  personal security for a couple nightclubs and I got a couple

 08  actual jobs, contract, doing personal security for a couple

 09  individuals that were like promoters for the nightclubs, okay.

 10                           And then what actually happened on

 11  the incident where I got arrested, some people pulled up

 12  next to us that knew us and they started throwing change

 13  and stuff at the guy's car, and so we all pulled over, got

 14  into an incident and they knew I had -- the very specific

 15  weapon I carried was a .45.  It was a two-toned .45.  They

 16  knew that I carried that weapon everywhere I went, so they

 17  called and said I pulled a gun out.

 18                           Well, at this time, I couldn't

 19  afford a lawyer to fight the conviction.  And I'm not

 20  sitting here trying to make excuses for the conviction.

 21  What happened, happened, you know, ten years in the past.

 22  But when it happened, I didn't have any way to fight it

 23  in the court system.

 24                           And I had a bunch of registered

 25  weapons and then they told me I wasn't allowed to have any
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 01  registered weapons until I was 24 for stuff that happened

 02  when I was a juvenile.  So I was totally against the gun

 03  then, and when they pulled that up, that's why the charge is

 04  possession of a firearm by a delinquent and not aggravated

 05  assault because they pulled open juvenile history stuff.

 06                           So, once that happened, they

 07  sentenced me to the probation.  I immediately did a one-eighty

 08  there on my life, and I went back to college.  I was going

 09  to college and doing that, and then once I got off probation

 10  I actually moved up here to Virginia.

 11                           While I was in college, I did keep

 12  on the principal's list the year that I was in college,

 13  but once I got off probation I decided I had to get out

 14  of there, you know, the hometown.  I was trying to do

 15  something different.

 16                           So, I've been in Virginia now

 17  currently since I believe 2013.  I've been in Virginia

 18  working doing septic.  The job I had before then, I cooked

 19  at a restaurant and then I worked at Lowe's at little bit,

 20  but I've pretty much only done septic as far as work.

 21                           But that's what happened with

 22  those actual charges there.  So yeah, I did have the gun

 23  and everything and I wasn't going to, I wasn't going to

 24  be able to win that in the court of law so I took what I

 25  could.  But I did my probation with no violations or anything.
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 01  I got out of there pretty good.  I got lucky I guess.

 02                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Let me ask

 03  you a couple questions about things that you said.

 04                           So, one, you said that the charge

 05  reads as it does because you had juvenile convictions.  Is

 06  that correct?

 07                           MR. GRAY:  Yes.  So, in Florida, they

 08  don't -- they're not sealed until you're 24, which I didn't,

 09  I didn't understand that.  I thought they were sealed after

 10  you turned 18.  So, that was something they pulled up,

 11  because my initial -- when I got arrested, it was possession

 12  or it was aggravated assault with a deadly weapon was my

 13  original charge when I got arrested, but when they convicted

 14  me, they switched the charge over to possession of a firearm

 15  by a delinquent.  I also had to turn in three other firearms

 16  to the sheriff's office once they switched the charge over.

 17                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  And you were 21 years

 18  old at the time of these offenses, correct?

 19                           MR. GRAY:  Yes, ma'am.

 20                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  And then the mis-

 21  demeanor conviction was for improper exhibition of a

 22  dangerous weapon or firearm.  That was the .45 you had in your

 23  possession?

 24                           MR. GRAY:  Yeah.  So, they're both

 25  for the actual .45 that I had in my possession.
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 01                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Was the gun discharged

 02  or it was just shown or brandished?

 03                           MR. GRAY:  Not at all.  So, with

 04  the two guys that were chasing us down, they called in and

 05  said that I pulled the gun out while I was standing there

 06  on the side of the road and which I didn't.  So when the

 07  cops come, I didn't run or do anything or do anything

 08  different because I didn't pull the gun out.  They just

 09  knew the gun that I had.

 10                           So it was he said, she said at

 11  that point, but then once they went back, they pulled up

 12  further information from my juvenile background and they

 13  unsealed it.  Then at that point they said I wasn't allowed

 14  to legally have any guns until I was 24, but I had four or

 15  five registered weapons that I got from the gun store with

 16  a federal background check.  All my guns I bought brand new

 17  from the gun store with federal background checks and

 18  everything a hundred percent legit.  So, it was kind of

 19  a surprise to me when it all was said and done.

 20                           The lawyers were asking for $12,000

 21  to take it to trial and there's no way I could have afforded

 22  that at that time.

 23                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you said

 24  that you relocated to Virginia in 2013?

 25                           MR. GRAY:  Twenty thirteen or fourteen.
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 01  I'm not exactly sure.  I mean, as soon as I got that completion

 02  letter from the probation office, I pretty much packed my

 03  stuff up and left.

 04                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And it looks

 05  like since 2014 you have been working for Loudoun Septic Tank

 06  Service.  Is that correct?

 07                           MR. GRAY:  Yes, ma'am.

 08                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  And you're the

 09  operations manager there?

 10                           MR. GRAY:  Yes, ma'am.

 11                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you said

 12  that for a period of time before that you were working for a

 13  restaurant.  What restaurant was that?

 14                           MR. GRAY:  That was when I was like

 15  16.  That was down in Florida.

 16                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Do you remember

 17  the name of the restaurant?

 18                           MR. GRAY:  Yeah.  It was Crab Heaven.

 19  They actually demolished it.  I just went back on vacation

 20  a couple years ago.  It's not there at all.

 21                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  You worked

 22  there when you were 16.  How long would you say you worked

 23  for Crab Heaven?

 24                           MR. GRAY:  Oh, it was like, it was

 25  like -- I don't know -- couple months.  No more than six
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 01  months.  I wasn't really even a guy that they had to depend

 02  on because I was still in school and I played sports.  It was

 03  more of like I'd come in and work a few hours and they'd

 04  give me some extra money because I knew how to steam crab.

 05                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  And you said you also

 06  worked for Lowe's for some period of time?

 07                           MR. GRAY:  I worked for Lowe's down

 08  in Florida, yes, ma'am.

 09                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  How long did you work

 10  for Lowe's.

 11                           MR. GRAY:  I think I was employed

 12  for them for a year.

 13                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And then at

 14  the time of the offenses that led to your conviction you said

 15  you were working in some type of security.

 16                           MR. GRAY:  So, during the whole time

 17  from 16 on I did a lot of security work bouncing in nightclubs.

 18  I knew all the promoters and stuff down there in my county.

 19  I knew a lot of the club owners, so I started doing my

 20  security work at 17, and then as soon as I got 18 I was

 21  able to do a lot more with the security work.

 22                           That stuff, that security work is

 23  so hit or miss and it's weird.  It's all about who you know,

 24  you know.  They want to see you and then if you know the

 25  person then they'll put you on to the job, but it's not
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 01  like a company, you know.

 02                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And so you

 03  worked in security from the age of 16 until when you relocated

 04  to Virginia; is that correct?

 05                           MR. GRAY:  Yes, ma'am.  Well,

 06  actually until I got convicted.  So once I got on probation,

 07  I stopped doing security altogether.

 08                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  So in 2011?

 09                           MR. GRAY:  Yeah, that's about --

 10  that's when I, you know, didn't do any more major security

 11  gigs.  Now, if someone hit me up for here or there on a

 12  weekend and wanted me to stand at a door and give me a

 13  hundred dollars, I mean, of course, I would do that, you

 14  know, but not nothing where I was trying to actively seek

 15  security jobs.

 16                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Have you ever

 17  held a license in the security field in Florida?

 18                           MR. GRAY:  No.  No, I didn't.  It

 19  wasn't that type of security.  It was all like events and

 20  stuff.  It wasn't like, you know, armed security where you

 21  needed the A or G or K license or whatever.

 22                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  You're now seeking

 23  licensure as a master conventional onsite sewage system

 24  installer.  What are your --

 25                           MR. GRAY:  Operator.
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 01                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Oh, as an operator?

 02                           MR. GRAY:  Yes.

 03                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  What are your plans

 04  moving forward if that's granted?

 05                           MR. GRAY:  So, what I would like

 06  to do is I have a couple buddies that believe in me that I've

 07  met in my time in Virginia and I'd like to eventually be

 08  able to buy my own tank truck and start servicing my own

 09  systems.  I have a network of clients that I've served over

 10  the years I've been up here and they would love to see me

 11  do that.

 12                           And I've worked for the guy I work

 13  for this long and he's a great guy and he gave me an

 14  opportunity, but, you know, this is America and I want a

 15  little basically capitalism myself and I would like to,

 16  you know, branch out.  I think I can provide a good service

 17  to the community here that I live in pumping tanks and

 18  installing and stuff and I would definitely pursue starting

 19  my own business but at the same time I'm going to want to

 20  get the rest of my licensing to do this legit.  You know, I

 21  don't want to do anything, you know, not a hundred percent

 22  legit.  So, the first step is getting the operator's license

 23  and then I can go from there.

 24                           I didn't want to -- I have a

 25  business plan that I made and didn't want to present my
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 01  business plan to investors or the two guys that I would like

 02  to help me invest until I had the actual licensing to where

 03  I could do something like that.

 04                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  What do you like about

 05  working in this industry?

 06                           MR. GRAY:  Well, so, you know, first

 07  and foremost, if anyone tells you they like digging holes,

 08  they're a liar, okay.  What I like about it is I get to come

 09  outside.  I work hard.  I don't get a lot of judgments from

 10  customers because of the field that I'm in and I appreciate

 11  that.  I like being able to work every day coming out and

 12  helping people.

 13                           You know, this is a big deal.

 14  Wastewater is a big deal and I'm pretty passionate about it

 15  because if you let this stuff go you could really tear up the

 16  environment surrounding these systems.

 17                           And here in Loudoun I find that a

 18  lot of these companies and a lot of these people that work --

 19  I guess they're my peers -- they're not as ethical as I

 20  would like to be on the job, you know, and I'm not trying

 21  to bad mouth nobody or anything.  I just run stuff my own

 22  way.  My dad taught me when I was young, you know, if you do

 23  everything the right way, you know, you won't have to do it

 24  again.  Do it right, do it light.  But if you start doing

 25  that other stuff, that's just not my belief.
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 01                           So, I would like to start my own

 02  business and, you know, really go after it and try to --

 03  I'd be lying to you if I told you I didn't want to be the

 04  only septic provider in Loudoun County.  That would be my,

 05  you know, ten-year goal after I got licensing.

 06                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  And you said

 07  that you did attend college for a period of time but then

 08  you left college, correct?

 09                           MR. GRAY:  So, basically what

 10  happened was I really wanted to get off probation so I can

 11  move out of Brevard County.  It's not a good place down there.

 12  It's nice when you go visit and space shuttle and all that

 13  stuff, but where I'm from and what I was going through and

 14  what I was dealing with, it wasn't good for me.

 15                           So, I was trying to get an early

 16  termination on my probation and so I signed up for school

 17  because I've always been pretty good at the books.  And so

 18  I was doing school for a year taking a business program and

 19  I had a 4.0 during that time, but like I said, I was living

 20  in my car going to school on probation.  So as soon as I

 21  got off probation, I got out of there.  I had to get a

 22  fresh start.

 23                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  I understand.

 24                           Were you attending Brevard Community

 25  College or where were you going to school?

�0016

 01                           MR. GRAY:  Yeah.  Yeah, so it was

 02  called Eastern Florida State which is Brevard Community

 03  College.  They switched it recently.  So it was like a

 04  community college.  I was doing business program.  I had

 05  like an entrepreneur class, just stuff to try to -- you

 06  know, regular business stuff was what I was taking.  So

 07  not nothing too hard but nothing, you know, not physical

 08  therapy stuff, you know, or criminal justice.

 09                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Understood.

 10                           What brought you here to Virginia?

 11  Do you have family here?

 12                           MR. GRAY:  I got a buddy that I knew

 13  from way back.  He's up here and I actually work for his dad,

 14  and they needed someone and he gave me the opportunity to

 15  come up and so I actually the first two months I was here I

 16  worked for free for his dad because his dad's really rude

 17  and mean and he didn't want me working.  But I was really

 18  good.  I picked it up real fast so he finally put me on.

 19                           But, you know, and then it's been

 20  good ever since.  I can't complain about the opportunities

 21  I've been handed, but I definitely want to move on.

 22                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Understood.

 23                           Is there anything else you would

 24  like to share with us about who are today or anything I've not

 25  specifically asked you about as we consider your application
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 01  for licensure?

 02                           MR. GRAY:  Well, so, you know,

 03  when you look on paper for things that someone has done

 04  when they're a young man, you know, especially with no

 05  guidance, I feel like it's easy to put a judgmental eye

 06  toward on the negative.

 07                           I don't want to say that I've

 08  changed who I was completely from back then because I

 09  always feel like I was a pretty good person, but I've

 10  definitely changed a lot of my thought processes and the

 11  way I live.

 12                           I mean, I've been a member of

 13  Loudoun County here.  Since 2014 I've lived over at my

 14  house, 2013, 2014.  I don't know the exact dates, but, I

 15  mean, I pay taxes.  I'm an upstanding member of society

 16  here.  I've got old people I go do charity work for that

 17  are my neighbors.

 18                           I just really feel like this is the

 19  time that I need to branch out.  I don't want to work for

 20  anyone else.  I feel like I can make it happen on my own,

 21  and, you know, the man from ten years ago to the man I am

 22  today, you know, night and day difference.

 23                           If I could go back, of course,

 24  right, things you would change, but you can't go back.

 25  So I don't want to say I live in regret because I really
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 01  don't.  If I changed anything from who I was I wouldn't

 02  be as smart or as humble as who I am today.

 03                           So, I do believe that everything

 04  happens for a reason.  I'm just looking for, you know, a

 05  fresh start here, do my own thing.  I do understand that

 06  it's, you now, a formality to have to deal with someone with

 07  felonies and it is a big deal, but, you know, ten years is a

 08  long time.  So, I feel like, you know, I've paid my debt

 09  and I've done more than enough to be able to put that stuff

 10  behind me.

 11                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  As you mentioned,

 12  it has been a period of time since these convictions.  Have

 13  you had your civil rights restored?  Are you able to vote?

 14                           MR. GRAY:  So, I don't -- I haven't

 15  voted.  I was going to do -- this year I was going to restore

 16  them to vote and I was going to write my governor down in

 17  Florida about everything that I can do as far as restoring

 18  all my rights and what I can do and whatnot.  It's just

 19  not like a thing that's been pressing on me too much.

 20                           Main thing I wanted to do is set

 21  myself up with, you know, my five-year goals and whatnot

 22  and it's no guarantee that they're going to give me my

 23  rights back, you know.

 24                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  I understand.  It's

 25  a different process in each state than in Virginia.

�0019

 01                           Mr. Ciszek, do you have any additional

 02  questions?

 03                           MR. CISZEK:  Yes.

 04                           Sir, you mentioned that you worked

 05  at Lowe's for one year when you were down in Florida.  Was that

 06  following your conviction?  What's the time line on when you

 07  worked there?

 08                           MR. GRAY:  So, I worked at Lowe's --

 09  I believe I might have still been employed with Lowe's when

 10  I got the conviction.  I might have got -- so, I think I got

 11  in trouble because I missed a couple days of work for a

 12  security gig.  I got fired from there and then it was shortly

 13  after that I got convicted.

 14                           So, it wasn't a long time at Lowe's.

 15  I was just a -- I was a cart wrangler.  They call them a

 16  loader.  I just go out there and load a bunch of concrete

 17  and stuff out there.  It's kind of a dead-end spot.  But

 18  definitely I was there though.  My buddy still works there

 19  down in Florida.  He actually runs the store now.

 20                           MR. CISZEK:  And then so between your

 21  conviction in 2011 and your coming to Virginia in 2013, did

 22  you hold any sort of employment?

 23                           MR. GRAY:  You know, I've got to

 24  be honest with you, man.  I probably put in about 250 job

 25  applications to get something to keep me afloat from there.
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 01  I had a couple odd-end jobs, but like I said, man, I was

 02  going to college living in my car.  I wasn't, I wasn't doing

 03  well.  It was a trial time in my life, but I got through it.

 04  So, you know, money was far in between when I was going to

 05  try to get paid to do stuff at that time.

 06                           I did have a good network of friends,

 07  you know, that would help me out through that, but, you

 08  know, I just like to praise God that I got through those

 09  two years probation without getting anything on me, because

 10  it was, it was a time.  It was a tough time.

 11                           MR. CISZEK:  I certainly understand.

 12  Thank you for your answer.  And that's all the questions I have.

 13                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  If there's nothing

 14  further, let me explain the process from today moving forward,

 15  Mr. Gray.

 16                           MR. GRAY:  Okay.

 17                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Based upon everything

 18  I've heard and everything I've read, I'll put my thoughts

 19  together into a written recommendation.  The department will

 20  mail you a copy of my recommendation along with a letter

 21  letting you know the date and time where the full board will

 22  meet to make a final decision concerning your application.

 23                           You're welcome to attend that board

 24  meeting, but you do not have to.  If you do attend the board

 25  meeting, the Board will give you an opportunity of about
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 01  five minutes to address the full board before they make

 02  their final decision.

 03                           Generally what happens is the Board

 04  would briefly hear from you, they will discuss your case and

 05  then they'll vote right then and there that day.  So, if you

 06  do attend the board meeting, you'll know the final outcome

 07  that day.  If you choose not to attend or you are unable

 08  to do so, we'll still follow up with you by letter a couple

 09  days after the board meeting.

 10                           One thing you need to understand

 11  is I can recommend yes and the full board could say no or

 12  the other way around.  It's a majority vote of the entire

 13  board that makes the final decision.

 14                           Do you have any additional questions

 15  for me, sir?

 16                           MR. GRAY:  No, ma'am.  So, you

 17  make your recommendation.  You send me a copy of that or

 18  it just goes to the Board?

 19                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  No, I send you a copy

 20  as well.  So, what I usually let applicants know is that

 21  it's usually about 30 days or so following today's IFF

 22  conference when you will receive my written recommendation

 23  in the mail as the department's presiding officer and it'll

 24  be accompanied with a letter from Mr. Ciszek, who's on today's

 25  call or another member of my staff, confirming the date
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 01  and time of the board meeting where your application will move

 02  forward.  Okay?

 03                           MR. GRAY:  Okay.

 04                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Any other questions, sir?

 05                           MR. GRAY:  No, that's it.  I

 06  appreciate -- now -- I'm sorry.  I just thought of one as I

 07  was saying that.

 08                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Sure.

 09                           MR. GRAY:  So now, when the board

 10  meeting comes, even if you guys don't give me a good

 11  recommendation, do I need to like -- sorry.  Let me think

 12  for a second how I need to get this out.

 13                           If I go there to the board meeting

 14  and I don't have a good recommendation from you guys and

 15  then they don't give it to me, then I could come back and

 16  re-file and do the process another way or -- because I had

 17  a -- I got to be honest with you.  I got a friend who's got --

 18  I mean, he's got a rap sheet, it's probably the size of a

 19  binder and he got his license but he went in there with a

 20  lawyer, and I just didn't feel like I needed a lawyer.

 21                           So, just -- I don't know -- I'm just

 22  nervous.  I really want this stuff so --

 23                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  I understand, sir.

 24  While I can't really give you legal advice as the department's

 25  presiding officer, but I will let you know I'm the presiding
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 01  officer not just for this board but all 18 boards for the

 02  department.  So, in that capacity, I talk to all applicants

 03  for all 18 boards.  That includes applicants who are still

 04  currently incarcerated at the Department of Corrections

 05  facilities and then applicants who have criminal history

 06  or other reasons that they need to appear for an IFF

 07  conference.

 08                           Regarding your specific situation,

 09  if, you know, my recommendation would be to deny the application,

 10  that recommendation you'd have a copy of before the board

 11  meeting and it still would be up to the board as to whether

 12  or not they would agree with my recommendation or disagree

 13  and if they're going to approve or deny that application.

 14                           MR. GRAY:  Okay.

 15                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  No matter what the

 16  Board decides to do, if they decided to deny your application

 17  at the board meeting, you still would get that final decision

 18  in writing by a final order after the board meeting and that

 19  would advise you of your rights and what you could do after that.

 20  And, of course, you still would have the opportunity to reapply

 21  for a license if it should come to that, okay?

 22                           But at this point, I would say

 23  you're still early in the process.  You know, you're appearing

 24  for your IFF conference today.  As the department's presiding

 25  officer, you're still waiting for my recommendation and
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 01  then waiting for the Board to make a decision on my

 02  recommendation.  So, that's kind of where you're at in

 03  the process.  Okay?

 04                           MR. GRAY:  They can't do anything

 05  until they hear from you guys?

 06                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Correct.

 07                           MR. GRAY:  Okay.

 08                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  And the Board --

 09                           MR. GRAY:  Now --

 10                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Go ahead.

 11                           MR. GRAY:  Now, I know you can't --

 12  there's only certain things you're allowed to say and stuff,

 13  and that's okay.  I was just asking questions as they come

 14  up in my mind.

 15                           When I go to that board meeting,

 16  should I have letters of recommendation from people in my

 17  community, customers or anybody from -- you know, should I

 18  bring those in there or should I wait in case I get denied

 19  and then come back?  I feel like you can't answer that

 20  question.  So, I'll get it figured out.

 21                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Well, no, I can

 22  answer.

 23                           MR. GRAY:  I apologize.

 24                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  I can answer that

 25  question for you, sir.  If there was any letters of
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 01  recommendation or materials that you wanted me to consider,

 02  I need to have that material today.  You can't present new

 03  information at the board.

 04                           Do you have any additional materials

 05  that you wanted me to take a look at?

 06                           MR. GRAY:  The thing is I could go

 07  back and talk to a lot of my customers.  I could probably

 08  get a hundred letters of recommendation from them and I

 09  could probably get a lot of recommendations from pillars

 10  in the community.  I just didn't feel like I needed to go

 11  that route yet.  I didn't know if it was that serious.

 12                             I thought -- to be completely

 13  honest with you guys, I thought that this wouldn't be that

 14  big of a deal because it's been ten years since I've been

 15  in any trouble.  I mean, I've gotten a speeding ticket.

 16  That's it, for ten years.  I'm just trying to make moves.

 17                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Well, what I

 18  would say is you cannot present new information at the board.

 19                           MR. GRAY:  At the board.

 20                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Right.  And so, you

 21  know, I can't provide you legal advice.  You know, the

 22  options I could give you today are if there was additional,

 23  you know, things you felt you needed to provide to me in

 24  order to make a decision, I mean, I could hold the record open

 25  following today to give you a little time to give me those
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 01  things.  Otherwise --

 02                           MR. GRAY:  No, that's fine.  I

 03  think that I've defended myself in what happened enough

 04  and I believe in myself a lot.  So I think that everything

 05  is okay and I think that you helped me more than enough

 06  and I'm sorry I keep asking those pressing questions.

 07                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  That's all right.

 08                           MR. GRAY:  I understand how it is.

 09  I don't want to get you in anything on the recording or

 10  nothing.  I understand how it is, but if it does come to

 11  that, the next IFF if I don't get it, I'll have to do

 12  another IFF, right?

 13                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  You would.  And

 14  at that point you could certainly present all of those

 15  materials if you had them if that became necessary.

 16                           MR. GRAY:  Okay.  Perfect.  So

 17  if that's the route, I'll make sure I go and I'll round

 18  up and I'll have so much dang letters.

 19                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  If that's necessary,

 20  yes, then you could submit those at that time.

 21                           MR. GRAY:  Okay.  Perfect.  Perfect.

 22                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Any other questions, sir?

 23                           MR. GRAY:  No other questions.  I'm

 24  good now.  I got it.

 25                           MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  If there is
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 01  nothing further, then I'm going to thank you, very much,

 02  for your time and I'll conclude the conference.

 03                           NOTE:  The hearing concluded at 1:29 p.m.

 04                     HEARING CONCLUDED

 05  

 06  

 07  

 08  

 09  

 10  

 11  

 12  

 13  

 14  

 15  

 16  

 17  

 18  

 19  

 20  

 21  

 22  

 23  

 24  

 25  

�0028

 01                CERTIFICATE OF COURT REPORTER

 02  
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 01             NOTE:  All participants are present via

 02    teleconference.

 03             The hearing commences at 9:12 a.m., as

 04    follows:

 05             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Yes.

 06             MR. LeSANE:  This is Department of

 07    Corrections joining.

 08             MS. ELDRIDGE:  The court reporter is

 09    here as is staff, and so if you're ready, we're

 10    going to go ahead and begin.

 11         Okay.  And the court reporter, I know we had

 12    a delay.  Are you ready?

 13             THE COURT REPORTER:  Yes.

 14             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Good morning.  My name is

 15    Jessica Eldridge.  I'm a designee of the board.

 16    This is an Informal Fact-Finding Conference to

 17    hear additional information regarding the

 18    regulatory issues involved with your application

 19    for licensure.

 20         On the IFF conference call today is Caroline

 21    Pruett who is assisting.  We also have a court

 22    reporter present.  The court reporter will make a

 23    transcript of everything that is said and that

 24    transcript will become an official part of your

 25    file.
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 01         I now convene the conference to accept

 02    presentation from those individuals who are

 03    present.

 04         Just a few housekeeping matters before we

 05    move forward.  Because we are conducting the IFF

 06    conference by telephone, I ask that everybody

 07    please speak slowly and clearly so that we can

 08    make an accurate transcript.

 09         In addition, it appears that if we speak

 10    over one another that the telephone conference

 11    cuts out, so I ask that if either myself or Miss

 12    Pruett has any questions, you allow us to ask the

 13    entire question before you begin answering.

 14         Of course, we will extend you the same

 15    courtesy while you're answering questions.  If

 16    you hear somebody trying to interrupt you while

 17    you are answering, most likely it is myself or

 18    the court reporter seeking clarity of something

 19    you just said.  I would ask that you would please

 20    stop providing testimony at that time so that we

 21    can clarify the agency record.

 22         This will be important because not only will

 23    I reread the transcript following today's IFF

 24    conference, but all members of the board will as

 25    well as they're considering your application and
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 01    my recommendation.

 02         With that being said, Mr. Clements, if you

 03    could please state your full name and mailing

 04    address for the record.

 05             MR. CLEMENTS:  John Allen Clements,

 06    Senior, 31285 Camp Road, Hanover, Virginia,

 07    23069.

 08             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you, sir.

 09         And Mr. Clements, is anybody from the

 10    Department of Corrections staff speaking on your

 11    behalf today or just yourself?

 12             MR. CLEMENTS:  My supervisor, Lydell

 13    LeSane.

 14             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Mr. LeSane, if you

 15    could please state your full name and mailing

 16    address for the record.

 17             MR. LeSANE:  Lydell LeSane, the address

 18    is 31285 Camp Road, Caroline Correctional Unit,

 19    Hanover Virginia, 23069.

 20             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Thank you.

 21         And just so you know, Mr. LeSane, we seem to

 22    have a very good connection at this point, so

 23    that's great.  I can hear you both very well.

 24             MR. LeSANE:  Okay.

 25             MS. ELDRIDGE:  With that being said,
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 01    Miss Pruett, if you could please introduce the

 02    exhibits at this time.

 03             MS. PRUETT:  Yes.  Board Exhibit 1 is a

 04    copy of the application file.

 05         Board Exhibit 2 is the Notice of Informal

 06    Fact-Finding Conference by telephone that was

 07    dated April 23rd, 2020, and it was sent care of

 08    Mr. LeSane at the address stated above.  That was

 09    delivered by UPS.

 10         Board Exhibit number 3 is dated May 22nd,

 11    2020, and it is the Notice of Cancelled of

 12    Informal Fact-Finding Conference, which he's

 13    indicating that the original date was not -- they

 14    were not able to hold it, and that was delivered

 15    by UPS to the same address.

 16         And then Board Exhibit number 4 is dated

 17    June 9th of 2020, and that's the Amended Notice

 18    of Informal Fact-Finding Conference by telephone

 19    sent to the same address and delivered.

 20         That's all.

 21             MS. ELDRIDGE:  And that's all.  Okay.

 22    Thank you, Miss Pruett.

 23             The reason, sir, that you're appearing

 24    for an Informal Fact-Finding Conference today is

 25    you disclosed prior criminal convictions on your
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 01    application for licensure.  The board has asked

 02    us to convene this conference to get the facts

 03    and circumstances surrounding those convictions.

 04         In addition, we're going to talk a little

 05    bit about your work history and how the person

 06    who's before us today is different than the

 07    person who is before the courts.

 08         The first conviction that I need to ask you

 09    about is dated December 5th of 1995 in the

 10    General District Court of Prince George County,

 11    Virginia.  You were convicted of domestic

 12    assault, a misdemeanor.

 13         Do you recall what your sentence was?  Did

 14    you serve any time for that?

 15         A.  No, ma'am.  I was just fined.

 16         Q.  Okay.  What specifically happened that

 17    led to that domestic assault conviction in 1995?

 18         A.  An altercation between my -- me and my

 19    son's mother where I restrained her from, you know,

 20    us getting into a confrontation and the police were

 21    called and then I subsequently got arrested for it.

 22         Q.  Was your son's mother injured at all?

 23         A.  No, I had -- I had grabbed her by her arm

 24    and because I grabbed her by her arm, I put a

 25    bruise on her arm to keep her from attacking,

�0009

 01    trying to hold her off me.  And I got -- because I

 02    left a bruise on her arm, that's why I got the

 03    charge.

 04         Q.  Okay.  Then on June 21st of 1996 in the

 05    Juvenile & Domestic Relations Court for the city

 06    of Hopewell, Virginia, you were convicted of

 07    assault and battery on a family member, a

 08    misdemeanor.  Regarding that conviction, you were

 09    sentenced to ten days with ten days suspended.

 10         What happened that led to this conviction,

 11    sir?

 12         A.  Again, that was a situation between me and

 13    my son's mother that we got into a verbal debate

 14    and it got -- it got a little physical.  I don't

 15    remember quite the details exactly what happened

 16    that day, but I do remember, you know, I was

 17    arrested, I was arrested for it and fined and then

 18    like I said, the ten days was suspended over my

 19    head.

 20         Q.  Okay.  Do you recall -- remember, this

 21    was in 1996, was it your son's mother who called

 22    law enforcement or how did they become involved?

 23         A.  Yes.  Yes, ma'am.  It was my son's mother

 24    again.

 25         Q.  Okay.  On July 9th of 1996 in the
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 01    General District Court for the city of Hopewell,

 02    Virginia, you were convicted of disorderly

 03    conduct, a misdemeanor.  For that conviction, did

 04    you receive any time or a fine or what was your

 05    -- what was the disposition?

 06         A.  I do remember I received a fine.  There

 07    was no time.  Basically, what happened on that was

 08    again, my son's mother, she had stolen my car and

 09    by the time I got to my car, she had vandalized it

 10    and done pretty much extensive damage to it and I

 11    got the time because of my reaction of how, you

 12    know, I conducted myself.

 13         Q.  This was 1996.  Why did your son's

 14    mother vandalize your vehicle?

 15         A.  She was at my mother's, my mother's house

 16    with me and she stole the car from the yard.  We

 17    weren't -- we really weren't together anymore, she

 18    just happened to be with me because I was taking

 19    her shopping to get my son some items and I went

 20    downstairs to do something and I came back and

 21    looked for her, she was gone.  So I looked outside

 22    and my car was gone.  By the time I found my car,

 23    it was at her mother's house in Hopewell and it had

 24    been vandalized.

 25         Q.  Okay.  Had she spray painted it or what
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 01    had she done to it?

 02         A.  Well, she did extensive damage.  She spray

 03    painted it, keyed it, keyed the window, cut the

 04    seats, cut the tires, sugar in the gas tank, I had

 05    aftermarket rims, she keyed the rims and she took

 06    the radio out and threw the radio in the trash.

 07         Q.  Okay.  And you were convicted of

 08    disorderly conduct when you responded to the

 09    location where your vehicle was.  Was this a

 10    verbal dispute or did it become physical or what

 11    happened?

 12         A.  What -- what happened was the officer was

 13    conducting I guess an investigation talking to her

 14    and her family through the screen door and, you

 15    know, it was just a bunch of he say she say going

 16    back and forth and I just got a little irate

 17    because of all the damage that was done to my

 18    vehicle.  And the officer just, you know, he had to

 19    calm me down and put me back into the police car

 20    there was no altercation or anything like that, it

 21    was more just verbally, words going back and forth,

 22    ma'am.

 23         Q.  Okay.  Then on February 12th of 2009 in

 24    the Circuit Court for Prince George County,

 25    Virginia you were convicted of possession of a
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 01    firearm while in possession of a schedule one or

 02    two drug, which is a felony.  You were sentenced

 03    to five years of incarceration and ordered to

 04    comply with probation.

 05         What specifically happened that led to that

 06    conviction?

 07         A.  I got picked up in November 1st of 2007

 08    for -- on a first warrant for possession of

 09    marijuana, possession of cocaine and a firearm.

 10    And I got -- and subsequently from the -- from the

 11    search warrant, I got -- I got indicted for all

 12    three things and I got found guilty of them.

 13         Q.  Okay.  So it looks like then on

 14    August 12th of 2010, in the Circuit Court for

 15    Prince George County, Virginia, you were also

 16    then convicted of possession with the intent to

 17    manufacture or distribute schedule one or two

 18    drugs, a felony, sentenced to 20 years with 19

 19    years suspended and possession with intent to

 20    distribute marijuana, a felony, and sentenced to

 21    ten years.  In total, how much time were you

 22    given to serve?

 23         A.  I was given 16 years to run consecutive.

 24         Q.  Okay.  And so this is 2007 when these

 25    incidents occurred.  At this time period, were
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 01    you selling drugs?

 02         A.  Yes, I was, ma'am.

 03         Q.  Okay.  And you were found in possession

 04    it looks like of marijuana and what other type of

 05    drugs?

 06         A.  Cocaine.

 07         Q.  Okay.  And then you were in possession

 08    of a firearm as well.  Was that a handgun or what

 09    type of firearm were you in possession of?

 10         A.  It was a 9 millimeter handgun.

 11         Q.  Okay.  Were you stopped in a traffic

 12    stop or where did this occur?

 13         A.  No, I got -- I got arrested on a search

 14    warrant at my home.

 15         Q.  Okay.  Other than the gun that you were

 16    found in possession of and the drugs, were any

 17    other items found in your home or seized?

 18         A.  I had -- a month later, they seized -- I

 19    got a car, a truck and four four-wheelers, a car

 20    trailer and a lawn trailer were seized.

 21         Q.  Okay.  And these are the convictions

 22    you're currently serving for?

 23         A.  Yes, ma'am.

 24         Q.  Okay.  What have you learned or how have

 25    you changed following these convictions?
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 01         A.  I would say I learned that I do not need

 02    to be a part of that life anymore.  I would say

 03    that I learned stop blaming others for my faults

 04    and just accept the fact that, you know, things

 05    that happen are, you know, consequences for my

 06    actions.  And that I'm just trying to move toward a

 07    little more productive life as a citizen.

 08         Q.  You said they searched your home based

 09    upon a search warrant.  Had you been observed by,

 10    you know, selling to an informant or, you know,

 11    do you know what information they had to base the

 12    search warrant on?

 13         A.  I was married at the time and my wife

 14    called the police on me.  She was disgruntled about

 15    some things going on in our marriage and she called

 16    the police on me and I got picked up on a search

 17    warrant based on her phone call to them.

 18         Q.  Okay.  You're now seeking licensure as a

 19    Wastewater Works Operator Class 4.  What are your

 20    plans moving forward if that's granted?

 21         A.  If it's granted, ma'am, I plan on going

 22    for my four and accomplishing that goal and then

 23    studying for the 3 and the 2 if possible while I'm

 24    here.  I still have three years nine months left at

 25    this facility before I'm released.  By that time,
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 01    I'm hoping to accomplish a great amount of goals.

 02         Q.  What is your anticipated release date?

 03         A.  April 19th, 2024.

 04         Q.  Okay.  And do you currently hold

 05    institutional employment?

 06         A.  Yes, ma'am.  The wastewater program's my

 07    employment, ma'am, apprenticeship program.

 08         Q.  Okay.  How long have you been in the

 09    apprenticeship program?

 10         A.  I have been in the apprenticeship program

 11    now about 15 months.

 12         Q.  Okay.  Before you were in the

 13    apprenticeship program, have you held any other

 14    institutional jobs?

 15         A.  Yes, ma'am, I have.

 16         Q.  Okay.  What were those?

 17         A.  Prior to this employment, I was a house

 18    man.  I was on the VDOT gun gang.  I've been a head

 19    floor man, I've had numerous house man jobs and

 20    floor man jobs throughout my incarceration.  I've

 21    held employment my whole incarceration.

 22         Q.  Prior to the convictions that led to

 23    this period of incarceration, I know that you

 24    said you were supporting yourself through selling

 25    drugs.  Did you have other lawful employment as
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 01    well or was that your primary source of income?

 02         A.  No, ma'am, I had -- I had lawful

 03    employment as well.  I worked for a place called

 04    Reinhart Food Distributors in Prince George County,

 05    I worked at Standard Motors Auto Parts in Prince

 06    George County.  I've had numerous production jobs.

 07    I also had my own landscaping.

 08         Q.  Okay.  What -- what period of time did

 09    you have your own landscaping company?

 10         A.  Can you repeat that question, ma'am?

 11         Q.  Sure.

 12         What period of time did you have your own

 13    landscaping company?  What years was that?

 14         A.  I want to say 2004 to 2010.  I had it

 15    right up to my incarceration.

 16         Q.  Okay.  And then Standard Motor, what

 17    period of time were you working there?

 18         A.  2007 to 2009.  They released me when they

 19    found out about my pending -- pending charge.

 20         Q.  Okay.  And I'm sorry, I didn't get the

 21    name on that little notes here, written down

 22    quick enough, but the other place of employment

 23    you mentioned as well, what period of time did

 24    you work there?

 25         A.  It was called Reinhart, Reinhart Food
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 01    Distribution in Prince George County.  I worked

 02    there for a short period of time.  I want to say I

 03    started in January 2010 until May of 2010 upon my

 04    incarceration.

 05         Q.  Okay.  Thank you.

 06         You said you're currently in the

 07    apprenticeship program.  What do you like about

 08    being in the apprenticeship program, and in

 09    particular the wastewater field?

 10         A.  I like the challenges it gives me.  It's

 11    challenging me to learn different things and to

 12    explore different options.  I like working with all

 13    the instruments we work with.  I like to learn the

 14    different changes that, you know, we go through

 15    with the weather and everything.  It's really an

 16    interesting program when you get down into it and

 17    you learn about all the biological stuff going on.

 18    It's really a good interesting program.

 19             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Thank you.

 20         Mr. LeSane.

 21             MR. LeSANE:  Yes.

 22             MS. ELDRIDGE:  What would you like to

 23    share with us today as we consider Mr. Clements'

 24    application for licensure?

 25             MR. LeSANE:  Mr. Clements as he stated

�0018

 01    that he's been in the program for about 15

 02    months.  Some of his responsibilities at the

 03    moment are the performance of all the equipment

 04    and gauges, shops in the treatment plant, plus he

 05    has the pump stations, SBI, UV system, PLC.  He

 06    also performs preventative maintenance on the

 07    pump station.  And in addition to that, he's also

 08    responsible for monitoring the water pumps.

 09             THE COURT REPORTER:  I'm sorry.  I'm

 10    sorry.  I can't hear you.

 11             MS. ELDRIDGE:  That's the court

 12    reporter.  Mr. LeSane, could you speak up a

 13    little bit for the court reporter.

 14             MR. LeSANE:  Okay.  Sure.  I was saying

 15    that some of his responsibilities are to monitor

 16    the performance of all the equipment and gauges,

 17    shops in the treatment plant such as pump

 18    stations, SBI and UV systems.  He's also

 19    responsible for performing preventive maintenance

 20    on the pump stations and UV systems and in

 21    addition to all of that, he's also responsible

 22    for monitoring of the water system maintenance

 23    and performing maintenance on that system as

 24    well.

 25             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you, sir.
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 01         Was the court reporter able to get all of

 02    Mr. LeSane's testimony the second time?

 03             THE COURT REPORTER:  Yes, yes.

 04             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Thank you.

 05    BY MS. ELDRIDGE:

 06         Q.  And, Mr. Clements, during the period

 07    that you've been incarcerated, have you received

 08    any institutional infractions?

 09         A.  I had one institutional infraction back in

 10    May of 2011.

 11         Q.  Okay.  What was the nature of that

 12    infraction?

 13         A.  It was the -- they said it was the device

 14    to deter staff.

 15         Q.  Okay.  Meaning what?

 16         A.  They said -- well, basically what it was

 17    is I had a laundry bag in my bed with sheets thrown

 18    over it and they thought I was trying to make a

 19    dummy in my bed and in reality it wasn't, but, you

 20    know, you're kind of at their disposal when it

 21    comes to that.

 22         Q.  Since that time, you've had no further

 23    infractions?

 24         A.  No, ma'am.

 25         Q.  Okay.  And no infractions for physical
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 01    altercations with other inmates?

 02         A.  No, ma'am.

 03         Q.  Okay.  Your convictions that you're

 04    serving on relate to drug sales.  Have you ever

 05    struggled with any type of substance abuse

 06    addiction yourself?

 07         A.  No, ma'am.

 08         Q.  Okay.  While you've been incarcerated,

 09    have you participated in any type of

 10    rehabilitative programs or classes?

 11         A.  Yes, ma'am.  I've taken a substance abuse

 12    class.  I've taken a taking for a change class.

 13    And I also have social maintenance training, the

 14    regular certification and the advanced fire and

 15    water safety restoration seal as well.

 16         Q.  Okay.  Thank you.

 17         Is there anything else, Mr. Clements, you

 18    would like to share with us about who you are

 19    today or anything I've not specifically asked you

 20    about as we consider your application?

 21         A.  Well, the only thing I'd like to say is

 22    that, you know, moving forward in my life, I'm

 23    looking for better opportunities, looking for

 24    making a better way for me and my family.

 25         I've gotten remarried since my incarceration

�0021

 01    and I'm just looking forward to getting back out

 02    and being a productive citizen in my area that I'm

 03    moving back into.  I have a great hometown that I'm

 04    going home to, there's many opportunities in the

 05    field, in the wastewater field where I'm from, so

 06    I'm just really looking forward to being a

 07    productive citizen and doing what's right and not

 08    what I think is right.

 09         Q.  When you were discussing some of your

 10    earlier convictions, you mentioned your son.  Is

 11    that your only child?

 12         A.  No, ma'am.  My -- my -- I actually have

 13    three grown children, I have a 25-year-old son,

 14    that was the one, me and his mother we were just

 15    young then.  But I have another son that's 23 and I

 16    have a daughter that's 22.  And I also have -- I

 17    also have two stepdaughters, one that's 20 and one

 18    that's 16.

 19         Q.  Okay.  And one other question I had.

 20    Did you graduate high school?

 21         A.  I have the GED.  I got a GED in 2003 when

 22    I was -- when I was still out there, I got my GED.

 23    I told myself I couldn't expect my kids to do well

 24    if I hadn't finished school, so I went and got my

 25    GED.  I went to high school and got it.
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 01             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.

 02         Miss Pruett, do you have any additional

 03    questions?

 04             MS. PRUITT:  No.

 05             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Thank you.

 06         If there's nothing further, then let me

 07    explain the process from today moving forward.

 08    Based upon everything I've heard and everything

 09    that I've read, I'll put my thoughts together

 10    into a written recommendation.

 11         The department will mail you a copy of my

 12    recommendation along with a letter letting you

 13    know the date and time where the full board will

 14    meet to make a final decision concerning your

 15    application.  You're welcome to attend that board

 16    meeting, but you do not have to.  If you do

 17    attend the board meeting, the board will give you

 18    an opportunity of about five minutes to address

 19    the full board before they make their final

 20    decision.  If you're unable to attend the board

 21    meeting or choose not to, we still follow up with

 22    you by letter a couple days after the board

 23    meeting.

 24         One thing you need to understand is I can

 25    recommend yes and the full board could say no or
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 01    the other way around.  It's a majority vote of

 02    the entire board that makes the final decision.

 03         Do you have any additional questions for me,

 04    sir?

 05             MR. CLEMENTS:  No, ma'am, I do not.

 06             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  If there's nothing

 07    further, then I'll thank you and Mr. LeSane for

 08    your time and I will conclude the conference and

 09    we're off record.

 10         Before you hang up though, just a few

 11    things.  Usually, it's about 30 to 45 days, sir,

 12    before you'll receive my written recommendation

 13    in the mail.  With that will be a letter from a

 14    member of my staff confirming the date and time

 15    of the board meeting.  Okay?

 16         And if you have any additional questions

 17    following today, Mr. LeSane should have the

 18    contact information for my staff in the materials

 19    that were sent to you and you can always reach

 20    out to us there.

 21         Okay.  But you should be looking for my

 22    recommendation in a little over a month.  Okay?

 23             MR. CLEMENTS:  Thank you, ma'am.

 24             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Okay.  Thank you.

 25         And, Mr. LeSane, you're free to hang up now.
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 01    I appreciate it.

 02             MR. LeSANE:  Bye-bye.

 03             MS. ELDRIDGE:  Bye now.

 04  

 05  

 06  
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 08  

 09  

 10  

 11  

 12  

 13  
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 16  
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 01    COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA AT LARGE, to wit:

 02  

 03              I, ELLEN V. LETCHFORD, Notary Public in

 04    and for the Commonwealth of Virginia, Notary

 05    Registration Number 7931926, and whose commission

 06    expires April 30, 2023, do certify that the

 07    aforementioned appeared before me, was sworn by

 08    me, and was thereupon examined by counsel; and

 09    that the foregoing is a true, correct and full

 10    transcript of the testimony adduced.

 11              I further certify that I am neither

 12    related to nor associated with any counsel or

 13    party to this proceeding, nor otherwise

 14    interested in the event thereof.

 15             Given under my hand and notarial seal at

 16    Chesterfield, Virginia, this 17th day of July,

 17    2020.

 18  
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 20  

 21  

 22                  _________________________________

 23                  ELLEN V. LETCHFORD

 24                  Registered Merit Reporter
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